
Mason County PUD No. 1 
Regular Board Meeting 

June 11, 2024 
1:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1)  Public Comment- Members of the public wishing to comment may request permission to do so during the 
Public Comment portion of the agenda. Comments shall be limited to no more than 5 minutes per speaker. There 
will be no action or discussion of public comment items, although the board may defer to PUD management for 
any necessary response. 

 

2) Call Regular Business Meeting to Order 
 

3) Public Comment 
 

4) Consent Agenda 
Minutes:    Regular Board Meeting May 28, 2024 
   
Disbursements:   Accounts Payable Wire     $135,056.95      

        Check Nos 125025- 125074   $156,980.16      
     Payroll Wire     $  92,335.61 
                                                      

Grand Total      $384,372.72   
 

5) Business Agenda 
a. Approve Changes to Administrative Policy No. 1002- Electric Consumer Policy  
b. Award 2024 Vegetation Management Contract to Kemp West 
c. Approve Line of Credit for Short Term Project Financing 
d. Approve Resolution No. 2082- CoBank Membership 
e. Designate FEMA Applicant Agent for Disaster 4775-DR-WA 

 

6) Staff Reports 
a. General Manager 
b. District Treasurer 
c. Water Resource Manager 
d. Legal Counsel 

  

7) Correspondence  
8) Board Comments 
9) Other Business/Public Comment 

10) Executive Session may be held as authorized by the Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30.110) 
11) Adjournment  

 
 
 
 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/858
69053743  

Meeting ID: 858 6905 3743  
1 (253) 215-8782 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85869053743
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85869053743


 
 

 
 

2024 Calendar 
 
Jun 27   WPUDA Water Committee meeting quarterly, Olympia/Zoom 
Jun 27   WPAG Hybrid Meeting 
JULY 12  Employee Appreciation Potlatch State Park 
July 17-19  WPUDA Association meetings, location TBD 
July 25  WPAG Hybrid Meeting 
August 7  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
August 8  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
August 22  WPAG Virtual Meeting 
September 4  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
September 5  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
Sep 18-20  WPUDA Association meetings, location TBD 
Sept 25-27  WPUDA Water Workshop, location TBD  
Sept 25  WPAG Hybrid Meeting 
October 2  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
October 3  PPC Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
October 4  PUD 1 Customer Appreciation Event 
October 23-24 Energy Northwest Members Forum, Richland 
October 31  WPAG Meeting, Virtual 
November 6   PPC Town Hall Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
November 7   PPC Annual Meeting Embassy Suites Portland Airport 
Nov 13-15  WPUDA Association meetings, Olympia 
 
 



Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Board of Commissioners Regular Board Meeting   

May 28, 2024, Potlatch, Washington 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
Present:      Visitors:  None. 
Jack Janda, President              
Ron Gold, Vice President  
Mike Sheetz, Board Secretary  
Kristin Masteller, General Manager    
Katie Arnold, District Treasurer   
Brandy Milroy, Water Resource Manager  
Rob Johnson, Legal Counsel                 
                                 
CALL TO ORDER: Jack called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: 
Minutes:     Special Board Meeting May 7, 2024 
   
Disbursements:   Accounts Payable Wire     $   78,926.17     
       Check Nos 124934- 125024   $ 608,694.40     
    Payroll Wire     $   93,544.52 
       
                                               

Grand Total      $781,165.09   
 
Ron made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed 
unanimously. 
 
Business Agenda: 
Authorize the GM to sign the Washington Families Clean Energy Program Agreement– Ron made a 
motion to authorize the General Manager to sign the Washington Families Clean Energy Program; Mike 
seconded the motion. It passed unanimously. 
 
Authorize the GM to sign the ARPA Grant Contract for Lake Arrowhead- Kristin reported that Mason 
County Commissioners granted the PUD an additional $75,000 in ARPA funding for Lake Arrowhead. She 
has not received the contract, but it should be exactly like the previous ones the PUD has entered into. 
She asked the board for approval to sign pending attorney review. 
 
Ron made a motion to authorize the General Manager to sign the ARPA contract for Lake Arrowhead, 
pending attorney review; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously.  
 
Authorize the GM to sign the BPA Construction Agreement for Substation Metering– Ron made a 
motion to authorize the General Manager to sign the BPA Construction Agreement for Substation 
Metering; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously. 
 



Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Board of Commissioners Regular Board Meeting   

May 28, 2024, Potlatch, Washington 
 

April 2024 Financial Report– Katie presented the April 2024 financial report.  
 

Financial Highlights: 
• Revenue – Gross Revenue was $1,240,838 for the month of April 2024. 
• Expenditures –Gross expenditures were $1,024,773 for the month of April 2024. 
• As of April 30, the PUD has $850,737 in grant reimbursements outstanding for ongoing 

projects, which is an equivalent of about 31 days of our cash on hand. 
 

Financial Metrics as Compared with Prior Year: April 
2024 

April 
2023 

Total General Cash and Investments $995,903 $1,407,439 

Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 2.22 to 1 2.15 to 1 

Debt Service Coverage (O&M/ Debt Service) 3.44 3.43 
Long-Term Debt to Net Plant 26% 36% 
Total Debt to Equity Ratio (Total Liabilities/Total Equity) 35% 42% 

Long Term Debt to Equity Ratio 
(Long Term Debt / Total Equity) 

31% 36% 

Times Interest Earned Ratio 
(Earnings before Interest & Taxes/Total Interest) 

6.54 7.81 

Cash on Hand 
(Total Available Cash/Average Daily Costs) 

37 Days (General) 
120 Days (All Funds) 

47 Days (General) 
135 Days (All Funds) 

 
 
Approve Ripplewood Change Order No. 2– Kristin reported that since the District requested changes to 
the design and restoration of the Ripplewood Mainline Project, there would be this Change Order No. 2 
as well as one additional change order in June or July for additional paving/patching for road cuttings 
and restoration.  
 
Ron made a motion to approve Ripplewood Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $32,895.00; Mike 
seconded the motion. It passed unanimously. 
 
Staff Reports –  
General Manager – Kristin reported that staff completed the Public Works Trust Fund application for the 
Manzanita Water Storage project. She and Katie are getting proposals from lenders on a line of credit to 
help cash flow these grant projects until we get reimbursements. She updated the commission on the 
deposit conversation with Pleasant Harbor and the board confirmed that the PUD should not enter into 
any work or agreements for the development until a satisfactory deposit agreement has been entered 
into with either $75,000 held as a retainer for month-to-month invoicing, or $150,000 deposit to invoice 
against. Jack told Kristin the board expects her to stick to those conditions when working with the 
developer on the agreement. Kristin gave an update on the NWPPA annual meeting she attended.  
 



Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Board of Commissioners Regular Board Meeting   

May 28, 2024, Potlatch, Washington 
 

District Treasurer – Katie reported that the PUD brought in a specialized rigging training that the crews 
are participating in today. The state auditor reached out about getting the next audit scheduled.  
 
Water Resource Manager – Brandy gave an update on Vuecrest and Lake Arrowhead water projects.  

Legal Counsel – None. 

Correspondence – None. 
 
Board Reports –  
Mike – No report. 
Jack – No report.  
Ron – Gave an update on Energy Northwest’s Participants Review Board elections.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – None. 
 
Adjournment: 1:58 p.m. 
 
 
              
Jack Janda, President Ron Gold, Vice President             Mike Sheetz, Secretary 



Page 106/07/2024 8:28:00 AM

Rev: 202303040906

Accounts Payable
Check Register

MASON COUNTY PUD NO 1

05/27/2024 To 06/07/2024
Bank Account:   4 - UMPQUA BANK - DISTRICT

Check /
Tran Date

Pmt
Type AmountVendor NameVendor Reference

CANAL BEACH TRACTS/GLEN AYR WATER 56,805.24WIRE1039 06/03/2024 DEPT 8 DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY 37,480.93WIRE1042 06/03/2024 IRS WEST COAST BANK

STATE RETIREMENT - PLAN 2 23,233.20WIRE1043 06/03/2024 WASH 1 WA DEPT OF RETIREMENT SYS

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 13,255.00WIRE1044 06/03/2024 WASH 7 WA STATE TREAS-MS: PO-11

VEBA MEDICAL SAVINGS 4,282.58WIRE1045 06/03/2024 HRA HRA VEBA TRUST CONTRIBUTI

CREDIT-THIS INVOICE WAS PAID TWICE 0.00DD3839 05/30/2024 RWC GROUP RWC GROUP

REFUND-VEHICLE #67 0.00DD3840 05/30/2024 NAPA AUTO PA WESTBAY NAPA AUTO PARTS

INACTIVE REFUND 224.68CHK125025 05/28/2024 2 MONICA  BARRY

MONTHLY REIMBURSEMENT 917.60CHK125026 05/28/2024 MUNCHR MUNCH, ROY

MONTHLY REIMBURSEMENT 581.81CHK125027 05/29/2024 CAROW CAROW, CINDI

MONTHLY REIMBRUSEMENT 1,157.66CHK125028 05/29/2024 GRAYJU GRAY, JULIE

CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 193.60CHK125029 05/30/2024 54 RICK  BRAGER

EQUIPMENT #119-PARTS 84.11CHK125030 05/30/2024 CAPIT2 CAPITAL INDUSTRIAL, INC.

GAS & DIESEL 2,423.45CHK125031 05/30/2024 DON SMALL & S DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST

ELECTRIC NON INVENTORY SUPPLIES 401.45CHK125032 05/30/2024 GENPAC GENERAL PACIFIC INC

HOT STICK TRAINING-APPRENTICE CAMP 346.24CHK125033 05/30/2024 GONZALES, RU RUDY  GONZALES

WATER NON INVENTORY PARTS 3,806.48CHK125034 05/30/2024 HDFOWL HD FOWLER COMPANY

MONTHLY REIMBURSEMENT 1,624.54CHK125035 05/30/2024 KESTER KESTER, GREGORY C.

SERVICE VARIOUS EQUIPMENT & VEHICLES 1,469.09CHK125036 05/30/2024 PARSON PARSONS DIESEL & STEAM

ELECTRIC NON INVENTORY PARTS 1,817.53CHK125037 05/30/2024 PLATT ELECTRI PLATT

VEHICLE #70-FLAT TIRE REPAIR 38.37CHK125038 05/30/2024 POMP'S POMP'S TIRE SERVICE INC

MONTHLY TABLETS & (4) CELLULAR CHARGES 515.56CHK125039 05/30/2024 VERIZO VERIZON WIRELESS

COSTCO VISA CARD-ACCT. ENDING IN 4326 16,554.26CHK125040 05/30/2024 CITI CARDS CITI CARDS

MONTHLY DUES 1,963.00CHK125041 05/31/2024 WPUDA WASHINGTON PUD ASSOC.

MAY 2024-HEALTH, DENTAL, & LTD 44,738.88CHK125042 05/31/2024 WASH 8 WASHINGTON STATE

Deposit Refund 971.00CHK125043 05/31/2024 2 AUSTIN  BRERETON

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.59.1/ap/AP_CHK_REGISTER.xml.rpt51217



Page 206/07/2024 8:28:00 AM

Rev: 202303040906

Accounts Payable
Check Register

MASON COUNTY PUD NO 1

05/27/2024 To 06/07/2024
Bank Account:   4 - UMPQUA BANK - DISTRICT

Check /
Tran Date

Pmt
Type AmountVendor NameVendor Reference

Deposit Refund 1,719.00CHK125044 05/31/2024 2 AUSTIN  BRERETON

Deposit Refund 2,033.00CHK125045 05/31/2024 2 AUSTIN  BRERETON

Deposit Refund 1,432.00CHK125046 05/31/2024 2 AUSTIN  BRERETON

Deposit Refund 100.00CHK125047 05/31/2024 2 AUSTIN  BRERETON

Deposit Refund 2,136.00CHK125048 05/31/2024 2 AUSTIN  BRERETON

Deposit Refund 736.00CHK125049 05/31/2024 2 AUSTIN  BRERETON

UNION DUES 1,117.59CHK125050 06/03/2024 IBEW IBEW LOCAL UNION #77

EMPLOYEE FUND 210.00CHK125051 06/03/2024 PUDEMP PUD #1 EMPLOYEE FUND

TIGER LAKES WATER-CHECK VALVES 193.35CHK125052 06/03/2024 2M COMPANY 2M COMPANY INC

SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE 145.04CHK125053 06/03/2024 AFLAC AFLAC

Vehicle #61 parts 213.08CHK125054 06/03/2024 BRUCE TITUS F BRUCE TITUS FORD

Shop supplies 131.38CHK125055 06/03/2024 BUILDERS BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC

EQUIPMENT #114-PARTS 62.39CHK125056 06/03/2024 CAPIT2 CAPITAL INDUSTRIAL, INC.

SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE 601.89CHK125057 06/03/2024 COLONI COLONIAL LIFE INSURANCE

Truck #67 Transmission Tune 433.13CHK125058 06/03/2024 D&L AUTOMOTI D&L AUTOMOTIVE

RECURRING CHARGES-TWO WAY RADIO 28 UNITS 562.06CHK125059 06/03/2024 DAY DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS

Diesel 1,236.60CHK125060 06/03/2024 DON SMALL & S DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST

Water Tools 107.42CHK125061 06/03/2024 FEI 1539 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3011

Electric Inventory Supplies 29,622.68CHK125062 06/03/2024 GENPAC GENERAL PACIFIC INC

Equip #114 & #119 111.73CHK125063 06/03/2024 GRAIN GRAINGER

VUEWCREST RESERVOIR AND BOOSTER STATION 19,151.86CHK125064 06/03/2024 GRAY GRAY & OSBORNE, INC

Water non-inventory parts 1,818.22CHK125065 06/03/2024 HDFOWL HD FOWLER COMPANY

INTERNET, IT SERVICES, & ALARM DIALER 5,192.88CHK125066 06/03/2024 HOODCA HOOD CANAL COMMUNICATIONS

Equipment #106 parts 155.88CHK125067 06/03/2024 J&I J & I POWER EQUIPMENT INC

SERVICE VARIOUS VEHICLES 1,855.35CHK125068 06/03/2024 PARSON PARSONS DIESEL & STEAM

CREDIT-THIS INVOICE WAS PAID TWICE 1,088.50CHK125069 06/03/2024 RWC GROUP RWC GROUP

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.59.1/ap/AP_CHK_REGISTER.xml.rpt51217



Page 306/07/2024 8:28:00 AM

Rev: 202303040906

Accounts Payable
Check Register

MASON COUNTY PUD NO 1

05/27/2024 To 06/07/2024
Bank Account:   4 - UMPQUA BANK - DISTRICT

Check /
Tran Date

Pmt
Type AmountVendor NameVendor Reference

ISLAND LAKE MANOR, BEL AIRE,& SHADOWOOD 75.06CHK125070 06/03/2024 VERIZO VERIZON WIRELESS

MONTHLY BILLING - SECURITY SYSTEM SHOP 200.49CHK125071 06/03/2024 34 WASHINGTON ALARM, INC

REFUND-VEHICLE #67 137.77CHK125072 06/03/2024 NAPA AUTO PA WESTBAY NAPA AUTO PARTS

ACCT# 4484 7345 5001 2554 3,905.50CHK125073 06/04/2024 US BANK-CCC US BANK

SHADOWOOD WATER-PERMIT 665.00CHK125074 06/05/2024 MASON2 MASON COUNTY TREASURER

Total Payments for Bank Account - 4 : (57) 292,037.11
Total Voids for Bank Account - 4 : (0) 0.00

Total for Bank Account - 4 : (57) 292,037.11

Grand Total for Payments : (57) 292,037.11
Grand Total for Voids : (0) 0.00

Grand Total : 292,037.11(57)

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.59.1/ap/AP_CHK_REGISTER.xml.rpt51217



Page 406/07/2024 8:28:00 AM

Rev: 202303040906

Accounts Payable
Check Register

MASON COUNTY PUD NO 1

PARAMETERS  ENTERED:

Check Date: 05/27/2024 To 06/07/2024
Bank: All

Vendor: All
Check:

Journal: All
Format: Summary

Extended Reference: No
Check/TransactionSort By:

Voids: Current
AllPayment Type:
NoGroup By Payment Type:

Minimum Amount: 0.00
Authorization Listing: No
Credit Card Charges: No

/pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.59.1/ap/AP_CHK_REGISTER.xml.rpt51217



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 1 

ELECTRIC SERVICE POLICIES: BASIC SERVICES 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Part One- Application and Agreement for Service 
A.  Existing Residential, General Service and General Service Remote Accounts P. 2 
B.  New Residential, General Service, and General Service Remote Accounts P. 2 
C.  Multi-Unit Complexes        P. 2 
D.  Owner/Renter Agreement      P. 3 
E.  Meter Reading, Billing & Adjustments     P. 3 
F.  Change of Billing/Payment Responsibility     P. 4   
G.  Security Deposit       P. 4 
H.  Disconnection of Service      P. 5 
I.    Reconnection of Service      P. 6 
J.   Meter Tampering/Power Theft      P. 6  
K.   Security Lighting       P. 6  
L.   Mailing & Receiving District Communications     P. 7 
M. Non-Discrimination       P. 7  
N.  Payment of Bills       P. 7  
 
Part Two- Engineering Service 
A.  Alternating Current       P. 9 
B.  Demands        P. 9 
C.  Electrical Facilities Relocation      P. 9 
D.  Inspections        P. 10 
E.  Interruption of Service       P. 10 
F.  Meter Location & Installation      P. 10 
G.  Phase Balance        P. 11 
H.  Point of Delivery       P. 11  
I.   Right of Access       P. 11  
J.   System Disturbances       P. 11  
K.  Underground Services        P. 11 
L.   Discontinuation of Service by District     P. 12  
 
Part Three- Special Services 
A.  Resale of Energy       P. 13 
B.  Additional Load       P. 13 
C.  Customer’s Wiring & Equipment      P. 13 
D.  Relocation of Poles & Equipment     P. 13 
E.  Customer’s Responsibility for District Property    P. 13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 2 

ELECTRIC CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICIES & PROCEDURES 
 

Part I: Basic Services 
 
Application and Agreement for Service 
 
A. Existing Residential, General Service and General Service Remote Accounts 

1) Residential Customers, either owners or renters, are required to complete, sign and return the 
District’s application card or a special contract for electric service (refer to page 3, Section D, 
Owner/Renter Agreement).    The customer is required to pay a deposit as noted in the Rate 
Schedule or pass a credit check to waive the deposit. 

2) Service applications include provisions and stipulations necessary or desirable to protect the 
interests of both the customer and the District. 

3) The District may require proof of residential ownership and/or residential lease agreement. 

 

B. New Residential, General Service, and General Service Accounts  

Service will be energized for new construction when the following conditions have been met: 

1) The customer has completed the District’s service application for new or altered electrical service 
with the Engineering department and has paid all applicable fees for the new installation. 

2) The customer has provided a valid service address for the location where electric service is to be 
installed and a correct mailing address for billing. 

3) The customer has obtained a State of Washington electrical inspection approval and has met all 
District requirements and standards. 

4) If required, the District will have the customer complete a notarized Easement and will file an 
electric utility easement on behalf of the customer allowing for access and future extensions to 
potential customers. 

C. Multi-Unit Complexes 
Service will be energized to multi-unit complexes when the conditions cited under sections A & B of 
Residential and General Service are met.  However, the account(s) will remain in the builder or owner’s name 
until: 

1) Meter bases and/or panel covers have been permanently marked and verified by the District. 

2) Tenants who have applied for service will be allowed to sign up for service effective the date the 
unit numbers are verified by the District. 

3) The District has been notified in writing of any unit number changes. 

4) Total District expense to change incorrect billings due to unit number changes without proper 
notification will be billed to the owner. 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 3 

D. Owner/Renter Standby Agreement 

The Owner/Renter Standby Agreement is available to any owner of property that is let to tenants on a rental 
basis. 

1) Owners may elect to enter into a rental standby agreement, the owner must sign a rental standby 
agreement  form with the district . 

2) In the interest of rendering uninterrupted electric service to an unoccupied premise, the District will 
leave electric service available with the understanding that the owner of the premise will be 
responsible for any charges for electric energy used during the period of time such service is in the 
owner’s name. 

3) If the owner adds or deletes properties to this agreement, written notice must be sent to the District, 
giving the date, address and unit numbers. 

4) Individual bills will be rendered to the owner on regular billing dates for those premises with a rental 
standby agreement.  A closing bill will be sent to the owner when the new party signs for service. 

5) The District reserves the right to discontinue electric service in cases where no one has assumed 
responsibility for such service, resulting in nonpayment of bills rendered. 

E. Meter Reading, Billing and Adjustments 

Meters will be read or estimated, and billed monthly.  

1) Meter readings will be made on the same cycle date, as nearly as possible, during each billing 
interval.  A variation in reading periods caused by holidays, weekends, severe storms and differences 
in the length of calendar months will not be construed as a change from a normal monthly billing. 
 

2) The District may estimate meter readings for billing purposes when its meter reader is unable to gain 
access to the premises on regularly scheduled meter reading trips, or when circumstance beyond the 
control of the District make reading of meters impractical or impossible.  The District will analyze the 
actual reading and make the proper adjustments. 

3) Opening and closing bills will be prorated from the connect date to the first reading date or from the 
last reading date to the closing date. If the closing charge is less than $15 or the balance owed on any 
closed account is less than $15, the District may elect to cancel the charge on the amount owed. Bills 
will be mailed to the billing address furnished by the customer.  Failure to receive a bill does not 
release the customer from the obligation to pay when payment is due. 

4) Services that have been billed inaccurately due to incorrect application of rates, a faulty meter, or 
clerical errors (including but not limited to a faulty installation or administration of a metering 
system) will be billed for an estimated amount of usage based upon a maximum of thirty-six (36) 
months.  If money is owed after the adjustment, the district may agree to a payment plan and during 
this time may waive any late fees associated with these additional charges until that amount is paid. 

5) Should one customer be billed for service actually furnished to another because of misidentification 
of the meter, the customer’s accounts will be credited and/or debited.  Crediting/debiting will be for 
all services so billed, up to a period of three years immediately preceding the discovery of the 
circumstance.  The customers will then be re-billed for all service actually furnished.  Any payments 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 4 

made to the incorrect account will be credited to the correct account after the adjustments are 
made. 

6) Adjustments for non-operating street lights may be made if the time-to-repair takes more than five 
working days from the date customer notified the District Office.  Note:  In the event a bulb change-
out or other repair work did not correct the problem, it is the customer’s responsibility to again notify 
the District so the crew can recheck the unit. 

7) The District may alter or reschedule its meter reading and billing cycle dates when it is in the best 
interest of the District to do so. 

Automatic Meter Opt-Out 

1) The District provides an option for customers that desire to opt-out of the use of automatic meter 
technology. A monthly fee will be applied to the customer’s bill to cover the costs of monthly manual 
meter reads. This fee is included in the District's Fee Schedule as a "Manual Meter Read Fee".  
 

2) PUD 1 will return the service to automatic meter reading (or capability) at its discretion after the 
customer moves, or the service transfers into another name. There may be an exception if a new 
customer follows the approved opt-out request process prior to installation of an automatic meter by 
the PUD, which includes the completion of the "Automatic Meter Reading Opt-Out Form" located on 
the District's website and in the PUD office. 

 
3) At no time is the owner/tenant/account holder authorized to remove, adjust or tamper with District 

equipment.  
 
4) If safe and convenient access to read the electric meter is prevented by customer action or inaction, 

PUD 1 can deny the opt-out request and install an automatic meter. The account holder shall be 
responsible for any costs relating to the change.  

F. Change of Billing/Payment Responsibility 

1) When a change of occupancy or legal responsibility takes place, the customer may terminate service 
by notification in person or by telephone within a reasonable time prior to the change. 

a. Certain provisions of special contracts or agreements may require specific forms of 
notification. 

b. The outgoing customer will be held responsible for all service supplied to the date the 
District is notified. 

The District reserves the right to read the meter(s) for a final bill within five business days from the 
date of notification.  

 
 
 
 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 5 

G.  Security Deposit 
 

1) RESIDENTIAL OWNERS AND RENTERS 

a. All residential owners and renters are required to pay the two highest month’s billing in 
a 12 month period as a security deposit for each service at the location at which the 
customer is making an application, (rounded up to the nearest dollar), with a minimum 
$100.00 or a satisfactory credit check to waive the deposit.   

b. New construction may require a credit check to determine if a deposit is necessary and 
the deposit amount will be determined by the District. 

c. The District does not accept letters of credit to waive or reduce deposits. All required 
deposits must be paid prior to beginning service. Deposits are returned to the customer 
via a credit on the account after 12 consecutive months of on-time payments. 

2) GENERAL SERVICE CUSTOMERS 

a. All general service customers are required to pay the two highest month’s billing in a 12 
month period as a security deposit for each service at the location at which the 
customer is making an application, (rounded up to the nearest dollar), with a minimum 
$500.00. 

b. The District does not accept letters of credit to waive or reduce deposits. All required 
deposits must be paid prior to beginning service. Deposits are returned to the customer 
via a credit to the account after 12 consecutive months of on-time payments. 

3) REFUNDING SECURITY DEPOSITS 

a. All security deposits from residential owners and renters will be refunded if they have 
maintained a good payment history over a 12-month period and the account is up-to-
date.  General Service customer deposits will be held for 24 months. 

b. If a customer’s payment history is not in good standing, the District reserves the right to 
withhold the deposit until the account is kept current for 12 consecutive months for 
Residential Owners and Renters, and 24 months for General Service customers. 

c. If the customer relocates within the District area and has an existing deposit on file, the 
original deposit may be transferred to the new account based on a good payment 
history; otherwise the original deposit will be credited to the final bill and a new deposit 
will be required for each service. If the original deposit has already been refunded due 
to good credit history, the district may waive a new deposit. If the customer moves out 
of the District’s service area, the deposit will be credited to the final bill and a credit or 
balance due will be issued to the customer.  

d. Deposits are returned to the customer via a credit on the account after 12 consecutive 
months of on-time payments. 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 6 

e. If a customer closes their account prior to 12 consecutive months (24 for general 
service) of on-time payments, the District will charge the final bill balance against the 
deposit and refund any remaining balance to the account holder. 

H. Disconnection of Service 
1) The District may refuse to connect or may disconnect service for good cause, including but not limited 

to: 

a) Violation of Service Policies 

b) Failure to Pay a Deposit 

c) Failure to Pay Electric Charges 

d) Violation of Rate Schedule or Contract Provisions 

e) Meter Tampering/Power Theft 

f) Non-Responsibility for Billing 

g) Violations of Municipal, State or National Electric Code 

2) Except where otherwise provided in this policy the District will, before disconnection, attempt to give 
the customer reasonable advance notice of disconnection, the reasons for it, and the date it is to 
occur.  Notification will take into account the particular circumstances for the disconnect, with special 
consideration for the potential dangers to life and property. 

3) Disconnection does not relieve the customer of their obligation to pay for energy or services 
received, or for the amounts specified in the District’s service policies or any written contract with the 
customer. 

I. Reconnection of Service 

1) The District is responsible for maintaining its distribution and service lines on a year round basis.  
The District’s rates and schedules, except where otherwise specifically provided for, are based 
upon continuous service at a single service location for a period of twelve consecutive months.  If 
a Customer does not maintain continuous service at a single service location for at least twelve 
(12) consecutive months.  

2) The District will charge a basic charge at the current rate schedule for each month service has 
been disconnected. 

3) The District reserves the right to remove any service that has been disconnected for more than 
24 consecutive months. 

 

J. Meter Tampering/Power Theft 

1) Meter Tampering/Power Theft means to: 

a. Divert, or cause to be diverted, utility services by any means whatsoever; 

b. Make, or cause to be made, a connection or reconnection with property owned or used by the 
utility to provide utility service without the authorization or consent of the utility; 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 7 

c. Prevent a utility meter or other device used in determining the charge for utility services from 
accurately performing its measuring function by tampering or by any other means; 

d. Tamper with property owned or used by the utility to provide utility services including a meter 
seal; or 

e. Use or receive the direct benefit of all or a portion of the utility service with knowledge of, or 
reason to believe that, the diversion, tampering, or unauthorized connection existed at the time 
of the use or that the use or receipt was without the authorization or consent of the utility. 

2) Customers engaging in Meter Tampering shall be charged the minimum fees as set forth in the Rate 
Schedule for tampering. In addition to the tampering fees, the customer shall be charged all other 
applicable charges including, but not limited to, basic charges, usage charges as well as a 
reconnection charge, disconnection charge and a deposit.  The District reserves the right to recover 
all other damages allowed by law including those authorized by RCW 9A62.060 and 9A.62.070 Usage 
may be estimated based on prior history.  

3) Customer engaging in Power Theft Diversion be charged the minimum fees as set forth in the Rate 
Schedule for tampering. In addition to the tampering fees, the customer shall be charged all other 
applicable charges including, but not limited to, basic charges, usage charges as well as a 
reconnection charge, disconnection charge and a deposit.  The District reserves the right to recover 
all other damages allowed by law including those authorized by RCW 9A62.060 and 9A.62.070 Usage 
may be estimated based on prior history or type of diversion. 

Meter Tampering/Power Theft is a also a crime under Chapter 9A.61 RCW which may be punishable as a class 
B felony, by imprisonment in a state correctional institution for a maximum term of not more than ten years, 
or by a fine in an amount fixed by the court of not more than twenty thousand dollars, or by both such 
imprisonment and fine.  

K. Security Lights 

 The District will install and maintain security lights upon customer request based upon a monthly charge in 
accordance with the District rate schedule.  

1) The District will provide all equipment including mast arms, brackets, control equipment, wiring and 
supports and shall be owned, operated and maintained by the District.  For installation of 2 or more 
security lights, the customer shall pay in advance 100% installation costs and the current monthly fee 
for each unit at each service location. 

2) A customer or developer who wants to use a special decorative light and/or decorative light pole will 
pay the cost of the purchase and installation and will be responsible for the replacement cost. 

3) The District reserves the right to charge a customer for material, labor and overhead costs for repairs 
due to vandalism or continued breakage or may remove the security light assembly. 

4) It is the responsibility of the customer to supply the ditch for an underground security light service. 

5) It is the responsibility of the customer to inform the District of malfunctioning security lights.  Repairs 
will not be made on Saturdays, Sundays, holidays or outside normal working hours except at the 
expense of the customer. 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 8 

6) The District may disconnect and/or remove at the District’s discretion a security light if the monthly 
rate is not paid. 

L.  Mailing and Receiving District Communications 

1) All correspondence, bills and notices relating to items covered by these policies will be sent by first-
class mail except where specifically provided otherwise.  Such communications may also be delivered 
personally, electronically or by phone. 

a) Customers shall provide proper mailing addresses and means of receiving mail.  Failure 
to do so may render the service subject to disconnection. 

b) The District may refuse to accept customer correspondence with insufficient postage.  

M. Non-Discrimination 

1) The District does not discrimination for any reason on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, 
disability, and where applicable, sex, marital status, physical, mental or sensory disability, familial 
status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, veteran status, political 
beliefs, reprisal, or because all or a part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance 
program or upon the basis of any other legally protected classification.  

N.  Payment of Bills 

Note: BILLING DUE DATES- All District bills are due and payable by the 10th of each month or the first business 
day thereafter. Unless otherwise noted on the bill, it becomes “past due” 7 calendar days after the due date. 

1) Past Due Reminder/Penalty:  A past due reminder notice will be sent to the customer on the 17th of 
each month or the first business day thereafter.  A 1.5% late fee will be incurred on any past due 
balances.  

2) Disconnection Notice: In the event the customer has not paid their bill or made satisfactory 
arrangements for payment within 10 days of the “Past Due” reminder, the District will send a 
disconnection notice to the customer by first-class mail, a recorded phone call and/or electronically 
requesting payment in full or to make satisfactory payment arrangements before the disconnect date 
shown on the notice. If the full amount due is not paid by the date requested on the disconnection 
notice, unless satisfactory payment arrangements have been made, the customer maybe 
disconnected.  The District may require the customer sign a payment arrangement agreement.  A 
disconnect notice will still be mailed even if a customer has made satisfactory payment 
arrangements, but the service will not be disconnected unless the customer fails to meet the 
payment arrangements. Service will be restored upon payment in full plus disconnect and reconnect 
charges as listed in the Rate Schedule, and may require an additional deposit at the discretion of the 
district. 

Any payments made in the field to prevent disconnection shall incur additional fees pursuant to the 
Rate Schedule, even if service is not disconnected. 

3) Collection Procedures:  



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 9 

The District may retain collection agencies licensed under Chapter 19.16 RCW for the purpose of 
collecting debts owed by any person. 

 The District shall not assign an account to a collection agency unless (a) there has been an attempt to 
advise the Customer (i) of the existence of the debt and (ii) that the debt may be assigned to a 
collection agency for collection if the debt is not paid, and (b) at least thirty days have elapsed from 
the time notice was attempted. 

4)     Budget Billing Program: 

This budget billing option is available to residential electric utility customers. Participation maybe 
denied/discontinued if the customer has had a disconnect of electrical service for non-payment 
within the last year.  

Utility customers may apply for the Budget Billing Program anytime throughout the year; however 
customers are strongly encouraged to apply in March. The program is designed to help customers 
develop a credit balance on their account to help cover the higher usage during the colder winter 
months. This program is intended to allow customers to pay the same amount each month of the 
year. This monthly amount will be billed each and every month regardless of any overpayment or 
credit on the account. Customers who sign up for the Budget Billing Program in October through 
March, will pay their monthly budget payment, plus an additional 20%, to compensate for higher 
starting bills. The budget payments are recalculated in May of each year. The payment amount is 
calculated based on an average of the actual electrical consumption for the immediate past twelve 
month period. To become eligible, your account must be paid in full (no balance owed).  

In the event that the residential customer does not have a twelve month history at a particular 
location, the previous tenant’s 12 month history will be used to determine what the current customer 
will pay each month. In the event that the home is newly constructed, void of a 12 month history, the 
District shall apply a 12 month history from a similarly situated home as determined by the District 
until the newly constructed home develops a 12 month history.  

If the customer fails to keep agreed upon payments twice in a 12 month period while on the budget 
billing program, they may be notified that they are no longer allowed to participate in the program 
for one year from the month of notification and bring your entire account(s) current as defined under 
District policy and state law. 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 10 

Part II. Engineering Services 
 
Delivery Phase and Voltage 
 
A. All Services will be alternating current – A frequency of 60 cycle.  Nominal secondary deliver voltages are: 

1) Secondary delivery voltages are 120/240 single-phase and 120, 240 or 480 three-phase. 

2) Service may also be delivered at 120/208 or 277/480 volts three-phase, only where such voltages 
exist, or in instances when the size of the load justifies a separate transformer installation. 

3) Generally, delivery voltages and phases will be those available at the point of service and, if other 
phases and voltages are necessary, the rate will be computed in accordance with extension policies 
and schedules. 

For large loads, power may be delivered at other voltages approved by the District. 

The District may require customers to install (at customer expense) reduced voltage starting equipment in 
cases where across the line starting would result in excessive voltage disturbances to the District’s system. 

The District may refuse to serve loads of a character which are seriously detrimental to the service rendered 
other customers. 

B.  Demands 

Demand meters may be installed on any account when the nature of the customer’s equipment and operation 
indicates that a demand meter is required for correct application of the rate schedule. 

C. Electric Facilities Relocations 

1) The District may relocate its electric facilities upon request.  The District will pay the cost of 
relocations when required by law. All other relocation expenses will be at the expense of the 
requester. The District may require advance deposit of estimated relocation costs. 

2) All requests for relocations must be in writing with attached project plans.  The District must be given 
adequate notice so that assessment, engineering, cost estimate, and appropriate authorizations may 
be obtained prior to the planned construction. 

3) District personnel will evaluate the relocation request and recommend a course of action to the 
Director of Operations- Electric. 

4) Evaluation will include a determination of whether or not the District will pay the cost. 

5) In the case of abnormal or unusual expense to the District, the request may be declined.  Outside 
consultation may be used in making this determination.   

6) District personnel will evaluate the relocation request and develop a cost estimate for material, labor 
and any other expenses.    

 

 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 11 

D. Inspections 

1) The District will have the right, but is not obligated, to inspect the customer’s wiring or equipment 
and trench before, during or after the time service is supplied. 

2) The right to inspect will not be construed as placing a duty or responsibility on the District for the 
trench, condition or maintenance of the customer’s wiring, or other equipment. 

E. Interruption of Service 

1) The District will use reasonable diligence to provide an adequate, uninterrupted supply of electrical 
energy at normal voltage.  If this supply is interrupted without notice for any cause including, but not 
limited to, acts of nature, floods, fires, accidents, strikes, riots, mobs, public enemies, laws, 
government regulations, or failure of equipment and/or devices, the District will not be liable for 
personal injuries, loss or damages resulting therefrom. 

2) The District will have the right to suspend service for the purpose of making repairs, improvements or 
additions to its system. 

a) Notice will be given in such cases, when practicable, and every effort will be made to 
make such interruptions as short as possible. 

b) If repairs, improvements or additions are made outside normal work hours for the 
convenience of the customer, the customer may be required to reimburse the District 
for costs incurred. 

F. Meter Location and Installation 

1) Unless otherwise authorized by the District, the customer shall provide an approved meter base or 
loop installed on the exterior surface of the building or structure at a height of five to seven feet 
above finished grade. 

2) Meters shall be installed in a location approved by the District. 

3) The customer shall maintain a clear space of at least thirty (30) inches in front of the meter.  If the 
meter is recessed in a wall of a building, a space of not less than two inches around the perimeter of 
the meter will be provided to permit District access for test equipment. 

4) If the meter is made inaccessible, in the sole and exclusive opinion of the District, due to remodeling 
or rearrangement of property, the meter shall be relocated at the customer’s expense or the District 
may exercise its right to disconnect service until the meter has been made accessible. 

5) The District will install and maintain all meters and other equipment necessary for measuring the 
electric demand and energy used by the customer under the District’s applicable rate schedule. 

6) If the customer requests the installation of additional meters other than those necessary to 
adequately measure the service used by the customer, such additional meters shall be provided, 
installed and maintained at the customer’s expense. 

7) If feasible, a customer may combine two or more electrical services on one meter to eliminate 
multiple accounts with the PUD by purchasing current transformer metering (“CT” meter) from the 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 12 

District, or the customer may upgrade to a 320 or 400 amp meter loop in compliance with State L&I 
electrical guidelines and approval. 

8) Meters are not allowed on District poles. 

G. Phase Balance  

In the case of three-phase service, the current taken by each wire of a three-phase service will be reasonably 
balanced at times of maximum or near maximum load. 

H. Point of Delivery 

1) Point of delivery is that point where customer owned equipment and District-owned facilities are 
connected.  The customer owned equipment shall not be attached to District facilities unless by 
special contract or by other agreements with the District. 

2) All equipment on the load side of the point of delivery with the exception of meters and metering 
equipment and other equipment provided by the District, will belong to and be the responsibility of 
the customer. 

3) The customer, or electrical contractor, is responsible for advising the District of service requirements 
and the location of the service in advance of the installation. 

4) If the District is not consulted and/or the District does not accept the service entrance location, the 
customer must relocate the service entrance to an acceptable location at customer expense.  

I. Right of Access 

1) The District will have access to its equipment at all times for the purpose of reading and testing 
meters, or repairing and/or replacing any equipment which is the property of the District.  If such 
equipment is so located that locks must be operated, the District should be supplied with keys to 
such locks.  The District may install locks for their own right of access. 

2) The customer is responsible for keeping all obstructions such as fences, buildings, and foliage at a 
reasonable distance from the District’s overhead and underground facilities located on the 
customer’s premises. 

J. System Disturbances 

1) Electric service will not be used in such a manner as to cause severe disturbances or voltage 
fluctuations to other District customers. 

2) Customers using equipment that might be detrimental to the service of other customers may be 
required to install at their own expense regulative equipment to control such fluctuations. 

K. Underground Service 

1) The District will construct, install and maintain underground electric distribution facilities to the 
metering point, including transformer, subject to the provisions set forth in the Electric Service 
Extension Policy. 

2) Replacement of overhead facilities with underground facilities may be done under the following 
conditions when the District determines it to be cost effective or in the best interest of the District: 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 13 

a) The District has assurance that all affected customers will cooperate in the conversion project.  
The District will determine in each case the minimum boundary limits to qualify for conversion. 

b) The District may require a payment according to the fee schedule to offset the cost of the 
underground installation. 

c) The customer will bear all costs of revising customer-owned service entrance equipment to 
receive underground service. 

d) The District may require the customer to execute an agreement, wherein special conditions are 
applicable. 

L. Discontinuance of Service by the District 

1) The District may refuse to connect or may discontinue service for violation of any of its service 
policies, or for violation of rate schedule or contract provisions, or for theft, or illegal diversion of 
electricity, or if the customer has added electrical loads which, in the opinion of the District, would 
jeopardize District or customer facilities (see Additional Load in Part III Special Services). 

2) The discontinuance of service for any of the above causes does not release the customer from 
obligation to pay for energy received or charges specified in any existing contract. 

3) A charge will be made for each and every reconnection in accordance with the policies of the District. 

4) If a meter remains un-energized or the service is abandoned for two years or more, the District may 
notify the customer of its intent to remove all its salvageable equipment and meter.  Reinstallation of 
removed or retired services will be in accordance with the District’s Electric Service Extension Policy 
for new services. 

 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 14 

Part III. SPECIAL SERVICES 
A. Resale of Energy 

Any purchaser of electric energy shall not connect their service with that of any other person or in any way 
resell, re-bill or supply any other person or premises with electricity unless permitted by the terms of a special 
contract approved by the Commission of the District. 

B. Additional Load 

Customers wishing to change load shall notify the District sufficiently in advance so that the District may, if 
economically feasible, provide the facilities to serve the increased load.  If the customer fails to notify the 
District and the District’s equipment is damaged, the customer shall be liable for the cost of the damage 
INCLUDING the cost of repairing, replacing, and/or restoring service. 

C. Customer’s Wiring and Equipment 

The customer is responsible for providing and maintaining suitable protective equipment such as fuses circuit 
breakers and relays, to adequately protect the District’s equipment.  The District shall have the right but shall 
not be obligated to inspect any customer’s electrical installation before service is supplied.  The District 
reserves the right to refuse to connect service to any customer’s installation which does not conform to these 
service policies, applicable codes and accepted standards of construction.  The customer shall be solely 
responsible for the maintenance and safety of their wiring and equipment beyond the meter.  The District 
shall not in any way be liable or responsible for any accident or damages to the customer or to third parties 
because of contact with or failure of any portion of customer’s installation, whether or not such installation 
has been inspected by the District.  All meter locations shall be approved by the District prior to installation by 
the customer. 

D. Relocation of Poles or Equipment – Altered or upgraded Services 

1) If a customer requests the delivery point be moved to a new location on an existing structure, the 
District will remove and reconnect its service drop or delivery point at the customer’s expense. 100% 
of the estimated engineering costs shall be paid up front and reconciled at the project’s completion. 

2) If a customer requests a pole or poles, fixtures, transformers and other facilities be moved for the 
purpose of making improvement to their premises, the District will relocate such facilities as 
requested provided that such relocations are in accordance with the District’s construction standard.  
The customer will be required to pay all costs of such relocations. 

E. Customer’s Responsibility for District’s Property 

The Customer shall exercise all reasonable and proper precautions to prevent damage to any District property 
on customer’s premises, including meter, instrument, transformer, service conductors and any other 
equipment installed and owned by the District.  All such equipment shall become and remain the properties of 
the District and may be removed at the District’s discretion.  In the event District property is damaged because 
of customer negligence, the customer shall reimburse the District for any associated costs.  The District may 
disconnect and remove the electric facilities from property where such damage persists.  No unauthorized 
person shall connect any house, premises, wire or appliances to the District’s system for the purpose of 



  Mason County Public Utility District No. 1 Effective Date:  April 14, 2015 
  N. 21971 Highway 101 (At Potlatch)  Revision Sep 2016  
  Shelton, WA  98584    Revision July 2022 
        Revision June 2024 
       Administrative Policy No. 1002 
 

 

Page | 15 

securing electric energy.  Any such act shall be subject to prosecution under the law. (See Meter 
Tampering/Power Theft).  



Mason County PUD No. 1
2024 Vegetation Management Bid Tabulation

2023 Vegetation Management DJs Darrels Kemp West
LUMP SUM TOTAL $321,000.00 $408,246.50 $173,440.00
8.5% Tax $27,285.00 $34,700.95 $14,742.40
Total $348,285.00 $442,947.45 $188,182.40



00153729 P a g e  | 1 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

of 

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF MASON COUNTY 
SHELTON, WASHINGTON 

WHEREAS, the above named entity (the “Borrower”), under the laws of the state of Washington 
and its formation and organization documents (the “Organizational Documents”), has full power and 
authority to borrow money, to secure the same with its own property and property delivered to it for 
marketing or otherwise and to perform all obligations associated therewith. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Borrower (the “Board”) has determined that it is 
in the best interest of the Borrower to become a member of CoBank, ACB (“Lender”) and to enter into the 
transactions described in this Resolution. 

WHEREAS, all prerequisite acts and proceedings preliminary to the adoption of this Resolution 
have been taken and done in due and proper form, time and manner, with the Board having full power and 
authority under the Organizational Documents to adopt this Resolution and legally bind the Borrower to 
the terms hereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that each of the following persons or positions (line 
out any not to be authorized under this Resolution) President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, 
General Manager (the “Authorized Signatories”) of the Borrower are hereby jointly and severally 
authorized and empowered to obtain for and on behalf of the Borrower from time to time, from Lender, a 
loan or loans or other financial accommodations (including, without limitation, interest rate swaps, hedges, 
caps, collars or similar arrangements designed to protect against fluctuations in interest rates (the “Hedging 
Transactions”), letters of credit, note purchase agreements and bankers acceptances) (each, a “Loan”) and 
for such purposes:  (1) to execute and deliver such application or applications (including exhibits, 
amendments or notes thereto) as may be required for such Loan and all borrowings thereunder; (2) to 
obligate the Borrower to repay all amounts borrowed and pay such rate or rates of interest as the Authorized 
Signatories so acting shall deem proper, and in connection therewith to purchase such interest rate risk 
management products as may be offered from time to time by Lender; (3) to obligate the Borrower to such 
other terms and conditions as the Authorized Signatories so acting shall deem proper; (4) to cause the 
Borrower to become a member of Lender and to obligate the Borrower to make such investments in Lender 
as required by Lender; (5) to execute and deliver to Lender or its nominee all such written loan agreements, 
interest rate swap, hedge, cap, collar or similar agreement, including any master agreement published by 
the International Swap and Derivatives Association, Inc. and such other documents and instruments as may 
be required by Lender in regard to or as evidence of any Loan made or Hedging Transaction entered into 
pursuant to the terms of this Resolution; (6) to pledge, grant a security interest or lien in, or assign property 
of the Borrower or property of others on which it is entitled to borrow, of any kind and in any amount as 
security for any or all obligations (past, present and/or future) of the Borrower to Lender, and to execute 
and deliver to Lender or its nominee all such security agreements, pledges, mortgages, deeds of trust, 
financing statements and other documents as may be required by Lender in connection therewith; (7) from 
time to time to extend, amend, renew or refinance any such Loan and to execute and deliver all agreements, 
notes, instruments and other documents as may be required in connection therewith; (8) to reborrow from 
time to time all or any part of the amounts repaid to Lender on any Loan made pursuant hereto (whether 
for the same or a different purpose); (9) to execute and deliver to Lender such agreements, addenda, 

RESOLUTION 2082



PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF MASON COUNTY (00153729) 
Shelton, Washington 

00153729 P a g e  | 2 

documents or instruments as may be required by Lender in the event that the Borrower elects to use Lender’s 
electronic banking system (the “System”); (10) to execute and deliver to Lender any agreements, addenda, 
authorization forms and other documents or instruments as may be required by Lender in the event that the 
Borrower elects to use any services or products related to a Loan that are offered by Lender now or in the 
future, including without limitation an automated clearing house (ACH) service; (11) to direct and delegate 
to designated employees of the Borrower the authority to direct, by written or telephonic instructions or 
electronically, if the Borrower has agreed to use the System for such purpose, the disposition of the proceeds 
of any Loan authorized herein, and to direct Lender to deliver any property of the Borrower at any time 
held by Lender; and (12) to delegate to designated employees of the Borrower the authority to request by 
telephonic or written means or electronically, if the Borrower has agreed to use the System for such purpose, 
loan advances and/or other financial accommodations, and in connection therewith, to fix rates and agree 
to pay fees and to direct the proceeds of advances to authorized accounts.  In the absence of any direction 
or delegation authorized in (11) or (12) above, all existing directions and/or delegations shall remain in full 
force and effect and shall be applicable to any Loan authorized herein.   

RESOLVED FURTHER, that each of the Authorized Signatories is hereby jointly and severally 
authorized to:  (1) establish a Cash Investment Services Account with Lender; (2) make such investments 
therein as any Authorized Signatory shall deem proper; (3) direct by written or telephonic instructions or 
electronically, if the Borrower has agreed to use the System for such purposes, the disposition of the 
proceeds therein; (4) delegate to designated employees of the Borrower the authority set forth in (2) and (3) 
above; and (5) execute and deliver all documents and agreements necessary to carry out this authority. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that each of the Authorized Signatories is hereby jointly and severally 
authorized and directed to do or cause to be done, from time to time, all things which may be necessary or 
proper to carry out the terms and intent of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that every act and action of any person heretofore executing any 
document or instrument delivered to Lender or its designee or required to create, make, enter into, perform, 
amend or confirm any obligation of the Borrower to or in favor of Lender, is hereby ratified, approved, 
adopted and confirmed as if it had been validly and lawfully authorized upon and as of the date of such act 
or action, notwithstanding any invalidity, defect or insufficiency that may exist or may have existed in the 
power or authority of such person then executing such document or instrument, and every such person and 
each of the Authorized Signatories are hereby jointly and severally delegated all necessary power and 
authority to effect the foregoing. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that any of the Authorized Signatories are hereby authorized and 
directed to cast the ballot of the Borrower in any and all proceedings in which the Borrower is entitled to 
vote for the selection of a member of Lender’s Board of Commissioners or for any other purpose. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that this Resolution shall remain in full force and effect until a certified 
copy of a duly adopted resolution effecting a revocation or amendment, as the case may be, shall have been 
received by Lender; provided that no such revocation or amendment shall affect the validity of any action 
or actions made or taken in reliance on such resolution(s) prior to the effective date of revocation.  In 
addition, all authorities herein granted shall apply with equal force and effect to the successors in office of 
the Authorized Signatories herein named. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that effective on the date when this Resolution is delivered to Lender, 
any and all prior resolutions authorizing and empowering Authorized Signatories of the Borrower to take 
actions as described herein are hereby revoked; provided that no such revocation shall affect the validity of 
any action or actions made or taken by Lender prior to the effective date of revocation. 



PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF MASON COUNTY (00153729) 
Shelton, Washington 

00153729 P a g e  | 3 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Secretary or Authorized Signatory of the Borrower is hereby 
authorized and directed to certify to Lender a copy of this Resolution, the names and specimen signatures 
of the Authorized Signatories, and if and when any change is made in the personnel of any Authorized 
Signatories, the fact of such change and the name and specimen signatures of the new Authorized 
Signatories.  Lender shall be entitled to rely on any such certification until a new certification is actually 
received by Lender. 

CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned, Secretary or Authorized Signatory of the Borrower, hereby certifies that:  (a) the 
Board of Commissioners of the Borrower, at a meeting duly called, noticed, convened and held on the 
____________________/BMD/, did adopt the foregoing resolutions in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Washington and the Organizational Documents of the Borrower; (b) all approvals and authorizations 
required to effect the foregoing resolutions (including without limitation board, member, or stockholder 
approval, as applicable) have been obtained and remain in full force and effect; and (c) said resolutions are 
in full force and effect on the date hereof and have not been revoked or amended in any way.  

Dated:  /SDS/__________________________________________ 

By:  /SS/_____________________________________________ 

Printed Name:  /SN/_____________________________________ 

Title:  /ST/____________________________________________ 



 00153729 P a g e  | 1 

CoBank, ACB 
INCUMBENCY CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned, as Secretary or Authorized Signatory of the Borrower named below, hereby certifies that the 
following persons are the current, duly elected or appointed Authorized Signatories enumerated in applicable 
Resolutions of the Borrower’s Board of Commissioners, that the following are specimen signatures of those 
Authorized Signatories, and that the e-mail address indicated for each person is true and correct as of the date of this 
Certificate.  

AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES 

NOTE:  INSERT THE NAMES AND OBTAIN THE SIGNATURES OF ONLY THOSE AUTHORIZED BY THE 
RESOLUTION REFERRED TO ABOVE.  THIS INCUMBENCY CERTIFICATE REVOKES AND 
REPLACES ALL PREVIOUS INCUMBENCY CERTIFICATES.  

PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT 

_____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Signature Signature 

_____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
TYPE or PRINT name TYPE or PRINT name 

_________________________________ __________________________________ 
TYPE or PRINT e-mail address for e-signature TYPE or PRINT e-mail address for e-signature 

TREASURER SECRETARY 

_____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Signature Signature 

_____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
TYPE or PRINT name TYPE or PRINT name 

_________________________________ __________________________________ 
TYPE or PRINT e-mail address for e-signature TYPE or PRINT e-mail address for e-signature 

GENERAL MANAGER 

_____________________________________ 
Signature 

_____________________________________ 
TYPE or PRINT name 

_________________________________ 
TYPE or PRINT e-mail address for e-signature 

Dated this  _____ day of ____________, 20____. Annual Meeting Month: _________________ 
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF MASON COUNTY 

By:  _________________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title:  ________________________________ 

NIC/ 



                         PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1    BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS           
                                               OF MASON COUNTY                              MIKE SHEETZ, Commissioner 

                           N. 21971 Hwy. 101                    JACK JANDA, Commissioner          
                      Shelton, Washington 98584                          RON GOLD, Commissioner 

 

(360) 877-5249     (800) 544-4223  FAX (360) 877-9274 
www.mason-pud1.org 

 
 
 
June 11, 2024 
 
 
 
Mr. Gerard Urbas 
Washington Military Department 
Public Assistance Program 
MS: TA-20 Building 20-B 
Camp Murray, WA 98430-5122 
 
Re: Designated Applicant Agent 
 
Dear Mr. Urbas: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to designate the Applicant Agent and Alternate authorized 
representatives for 
 
Disaster: 4775-DR-WA Severe Storm, Straight-line Winds, Flooding, Landslides 
Applicant: Public Utility District #1 of Mason County 
Applicant Agent: Katie Arnold, Director of Business Services 
Alternate Applicant Agent: Kristin Masteller, General Manager 
The purpose of this designation as the authorized representatives is to obtain federal 
and/or State Emergency or Major Disaster Assistance funds. 
 
These representatives are authorized to execute all contracts, certify completion of 
projects, request payments, and prepare all required documentation for funding 
requirements. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jack Janda 
President 


	Agenda 06-11-24.pdf
	Board-Packet-06-11-24 (1).pdf
	Minutes 05-28-24 Regular Board Meeting.pdf
	AP No. 1002- Electric Consumer Policy - 5-31-24 draft.pdf
	check register.pdf
	51,217.00
	4.00
	
	
	000010396/3/24, 12:00:00 AMDEPT 8WIRE
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	000010426/3/24, 12:00:00 AMIRSWIRE
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	000010436/3/24, 12:00:00 AMWASH 1WIRE
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	000010446/3/24, 12:00:00 AMWASH 7WIRE
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	000010456/3/24, 12:00:00 AMHRAWIRE
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	000038395/30/24, 12:00:00 AMRWC GROUPDD
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	000038405/30/24, 12:00:00 AMNAPA AUTO PARTSDD
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250255/28/24, 12:00:00 AM2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250265/28/24, 12:00:00 AMMUNCHRCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250275/29/24, 12:00:00 AMCAROWCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250285/29/24, 12:00:00 AMGRAYJUCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250295/30/24, 12:00:00 AM54CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250305/30/24, 12:00:00 AMCAPIT2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250315/30/24, 12:00:00 AMDON SMALL & SONCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250325/30/24, 12:00:00 AMGENPACCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250335/30/24, 12:00:00 AMGONZALES, RUDYCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250345/30/24, 12:00:00 AMHDFOWLCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250355/30/24, 12:00:00 AMKESTERCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250365/30/24, 12:00:00 AMPARSONCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250375/30/24, 12:00:00 AMPLATT ELECTRICCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250385/30/24, 12:00:00 AMPOMP'SCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250395/30/24, 12:00:00 AMVERIZOCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250405/30/24, 12:00:00 AMCITI CARDSCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250415/31/24, 12:00:00 AMWPUDACHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250425/31/24, 12:00:00 AMWASH 8CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250435/31/24, 12:00:00 AM2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250445/31/24, 12:00:00 AM2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250455/31/24, 12:00:00 AM2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250465/31/24, 12:00:00 AM2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250475/31/24, 12:00:00 AM2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250485/31/24, 12:00:00 AM2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250495/31/24, 12:00:00 AM2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250506/3/24, 12:00:00 AMIBEWCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250516/3/24, 12:00:00 AMPUDEMPCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250526/3/24, 12:00:00 AM2M COMPANYCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250536/3/24, 12:00:00 AMAFLACCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250546/3/24, 12:00:00 AMBRUCE TITUS FORCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250556/3/24, 12:00:00 AMBUILDERSCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250566/3/24, 12:00:00 AMCAPIT2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250576/3/24, 12:00:00 AMCOLONICHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250586/3/24, 12:00:00 AMD&L AUTOMOTIVECHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250596/3/24, 12:00:00 AMDAYCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250606/3/24, 12:00:00 AMDON SMALL & SONCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250616/3/24, 12:00:00 AMFEI 1539CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250626/3/24, 12:00:00 AMGENPACCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250636/3/24, 12:00:00 AMGRAINCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250646/3/24, 12:00:00 AMGRAYCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250656/3/24, 12:00:00 AMHDFOWLCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250666/3/24, 12:00:00 AMHOODCACHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250676/3/24, 12:00:00 AMJ&ICHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250686/3/24, 12:00:00 AMPARSONCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250696/3/24, 12:00:00 AMRWC GROUPCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250706/3/24, 12:00:00 AMVERIZOCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250716/3/24, 12:00:00 AM34CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250726/3/24, 12:00:00 AMNAPA AUTO PARTSCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250736/4/24, 12:00:00 AMUS BANK-CCCCHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	



	001250746/5/24, 12:00:00 AMMASON2CHK
	N
	Non-Hist
	








	VM Tabulation.pdf
	Designating Applicant Agent 4775-DR-WA.pdf

	2082- CoBank Membership (2024).pdf
	Inc Cert 00153729 (002).pdf
	RES 00153729 (004).pdf




